
Summons to Meeting

Thursday 1 March 2018

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Friday 9 March 2018, 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Alan Pitcher (Chair) Councillor Janet Farebrother (Co-Chair)
Councillor Joseph Cowell Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor Celia Tibble Councillor Martin Wood

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544.

Agenda
1. Minutes of meeting Friday 26 January 2018 of Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  (Pages 3 - 6)

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

Page 1



5. Public Participation  
To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting.

6. Report of Budget Task and Finish Group  (Pages 7 - 14)
Stand alone report summarising work on now completed task and finish group

7. Appointment of Standing Group  (Pages 15 - 20)
Report to appoint successor group to Budget task and finish group

8. Forward Plan  (Pages 21 - 30)

9. Task and Finish Group/Working Group Updates  

10. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring  (Pages 31 - 36)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Friday 20 April 2018, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council Chamber - 
Allerdale House, Workington on Friday 26 January 2018 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Pitcher (Chair) Councillor Janet Farebrother (Co-Chair)
Councillor Joseph Cowell Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Celia Tibble
Councillor Martin Wood

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Bill Pegram

Staff Present

E Davidson, D Devine, A FitzGerald, I Hinde, C Holmes and P Wood

316. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2017 were signed as a 
correct record.

317. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

318. Questions 

None received.

319. Public Participation 

None received.

320. Results of the recycling trials 

The Head of Community Services and the Assistant Business Development 
Manager delivered a presentation on the results of recycling trials that had 
taken place in Seaton, Maryport and Cockermouth from 15 March-24 May 2017.

The Council’s current waste collection contract was due to end in March 2019. 
The Executive had taken the decision to look into adopting a new recycling 
scheme around this time, when the contract was to be retendered.

Councillors asked if those who took part in the trials could be contacted with the 
results. The Head of Community Services agreed to look into this.

Agreed

That the update be noted.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



321. Customer Access Strategy 

The Head of Customer and Commissioning, OD and Transformation gave a 
presentation on the Customer Access Strategy.

Through the strategy, the council was pursuing a digital by choice approach to 
provide better access to information and services.

To deliver the strategy the council had created the following set of guiding 
principles around the way it provided access to services and information:

 First principle

To make sure the customer remains at the heart of our business.

 Second principle

Ensure a consistent and positive customer experience, getting it right first 
time, irrespective of the choice of contact channel.

 Third principle

Develop customer insight to understand what our customers want 
including monitoring customer usage, preferences, satisfaction levels 
and the cost to serve, then using that information to improve service 
delivery and concentrate resources to the greatest need.

 Fourth principle

Reduce the need for customers to contact us by eliminating unnecessary 
contact, and when customers do need to speak to us, actively encourage 
use of the most appropriate channel whilst continuing to maintain choice 
for all services.

 Fifth principle

Manage demand – design our processes and customer journeys to 
manage the need, and therefore the demand, for our services to support 
the second principle.

 Sixth principle

Partnership working – we will look to avoid duplication of effort by 
working with partners to deliver services more effectively across the 
district.

Members noted the strategy.

Agreed

That the Customer Access Strategy be noted.

Page 4



322. Update on the House of Commons Select Committee report on the 
effectiveness of local authority overview and scrutiny committees 

The Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) gave an update on the House of 
Commons Communities and Local Government Committee’s first report on the 
effectiveness of local authority overview and scrutiny committees.

Members noted the main findings in the report.

Councillor M Grainger left the meeting.

Agreed

That the findings of the House of Commons Communities and Local 
Government Committee’s first report on the effectiveness of local authority 
overview and scrutiny committees be noted.

323. Forward Plan 

Members noted the Executive’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

Councillors asked for more information on the decision to be taken on a review 
of car parking permits and commercial use of car parks. The Policy Officer 
(Scrutiny and Partnerships) agreed to circulate the information.

Agreed

That the Executive’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions be noted.

324. Task and Finish Group/Working Group Updates 

Members received an update on the Community Services Task and Finish 
Group. The group had been updated on the new timetable for the letting of 
contracts for grounds maintenance. The council was due to issue 
documentation and the decision on which tenderer to award the contract to 
would be taken in autumn.

Members asked for information from all Task and Finish Groups/Working 
Groups to be circulated to all members of overview and scrutiny. The Policy 
Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) agreed to do this.

Agreed

That the update on the Community Services Task and Finish Group be noted.

325. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring 

Members noted the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19.

It was asked that an item be included on the work programme with regard to 
scrutiny of the Reedlands Road Business Park key decision to be taken by the 

Page 5



Executive on 24 January 2018. Members wanted to ensure that the council was 
getting good value for money.

Agreed

That the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19 be noted.

The meeting closed at 12.00 pm

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny 1

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit”

Report of the 
Budget Review

Task and Finish Group

February 2018

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Overview and Scrutiny 2

1. Introduction and Background

The Budget Review Task and Finish Group was established by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to consider the following terms of reference:

 To perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the proposed Allerdale 
Borough Council budget for the 2018-2019 financial year

 To report risks or threats that, in the view of the Task and Finish Group, may 
hinder the Council in achieving its objectives in delivering the Council Plan to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration

 To similarly report any suggestions for efficiencies or savings for 
consideration

The Task and Finish Group consisted of:

Cllr B Finlay (chair)
Cllr C Armstrong 
Cllr P Bales
Cllr J Cowell 
Cllr J Farebrother 
Cllr M Fitzgerald
Cllr P Tibble.

The Group established its scope at the first meeting. 

In early November 2017 members of the Group attended a scrutiny training session 
which included a focus on budget scrutiny. At this session, the trainer offered an 
observation that, based on prior experience, the scope and remit agreed for the 
Group was unlikely to be achieve in the timescale and advised that the time available 
would be most productively used to build understanding of the processes involved in 
budget setting. This then became the focus of the Group’s work.

The Group met 4 times between November and February 2018. 

To provide the Group with an initial background understanding the Financial 
Services Manager gave the Group a detailed presentation on the process and 
procedures. 

The Group were also provided with an electronic copy of a brief version budget book 
showing the budgets aligned to portfolio areas. 

Scrutiny members have been looking to develop the budget scrutiny process for the 
last two years. While the relationship between the start time of the process and the 
establishing of the group meant a full scrutiny would not be possible for the budget 
under construction, it was recognised that the work being done and the development 
of a fuller understanding of the process would be useful groundwork for the next and 
future years.

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny 3

2. Work undertaken in this review

The Group worked through a number of questions over the four meetings, around a 
number of themes.

How is the budget developed?

The Council has a robust and clearly defined process for the preparation of its 
annual budget.  

The process can be broken down into 4 stages
 

1. Planning – including preparation of the Budget Strategy and the refresh of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan and detailed planning and timetabling of 
activities required to produce the revenue and capital budgets. This stage also 
involves providing training for budget holders on the budget process. 

2. Detailed preparation  - incorporating the submission and collation of growth 
and savings bids and the calculation of expected funding 

  
3. Challenge and consultation - including the ‘Star Chamber’ process and public 

consultation on budget proposals

4. Reporting and approval involving consideration of the formal budget reports 
by SMT, Executive and Full Council.

Over the last year the ‘star-chamber’ process has been refined to include looking at 
trends over time which has led to the identification of regular (annual) underspend, 
which in turn is intended to achieve small but significant savings. Therefore the star-
chamber process is not only used for the budget setting process, but is also used as 
a reviewing process during the financial year. When looking at the future budget the 
process begins with the Heads of Service submitting their bids through the finance 
system. 

Prior to the ‘star-chamber’ the Head of Finance, the Portfolio Holder for Corporate 
Resources (Finance & Property) and the Corporate Director meet with each Head of 
Service to discuss the gap and ask what are the proposals; at the end of those 
discussions and the submission of budget bids the gap had increased to £800k.

The star-chamber process involves the Leader, Deputy Leader, Chief Executive, 
Director, Head of Finance, with the individual Portfolio Holders and the associated 
Head of Service. The star-chamber discussions are considered to be robust at times.

The focus of star-chamber is also on budget planning two years hence and beyond, 
when the self-sufficiency plan ends and when (potentially) the settlement from 
government ends and the Council needs to be wholly self-sufficient.

The finance team prepares the budget by drawing upon numerous sources of 
information including income from the anticipated Council Tax receipts and NNDR 

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny 4

receipts, the government settlement, and expenditure in terms of inflation on 
contracts, and growth predictions.

The budget underpins the Council Plan, and ultimately exists to deliver the Plan. The 
discussions around policy can include investing to save. 

Initially the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources (Finance & Property) meets 
with the Head of Finance and individual Heads of Service to go through and review 
budgets and expenditure during the year, though this will be without the relevant 
Portfolio Holder.

The star chambers for the 18/19 budget began after Council agreed the revised 
budget (for the current financial year) at the beginning of November.

At the time of the revised budget the gap between the ‘growth’ bids and the intended 
budget was around £650k.

For several years recently the Council has underspent on its budget. Attempting to 
analyse underspend is not simple: budgets roll forward, and there have been lots of 
changes. The approach has been to not salami slice (regularly shave a little off each 
budget) but to be more realistic and pragmatic, and sometimes radical, about actual 
budget needs and expenditure. 

Previous decisions have enabled the Council to be in the current financial position, 
including the decision to protect the Council Tax base. 

All bids are reviewed through a colour coding system of red/amber/green plus blue 
which is used for those budget items which are not included for discussion, such as 
contracts and wage increases. 

All other bids are then discussed and tested by the star-chamber team, including 
discussions about benefits and risks.

What about contingency planning for slippage? 

The financial team are continually monitoring expenditure:

 the process of looking at a revised budget part way through the year was 
introduced some years ago and this allows further checking (and not all 
Councils adopt this approach); 

 the star chamber process also deals with changes in budget; the third tier 
managers now meet quarterly with the finance team to review spending; 

 this new process of Scrutiny monitoring through its task and finish group will 
provide additional checking from financial year 2018/19 onwards.

Slippage of invoices: there is a KPI in the quarterly monitoring process about 
payment of suppliers. The Council aims to pay local suppliers within 14 days.

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny 5

The capital budget is easier to manage over the long term i.e. over 12 months; the 
revenue budget can be more volatile.

The new approach to project development now includes input from the finance team 
at the beginning of the process.

The finance team is now structured around a business partnering model; the regular 
meetings with third tier managers are to enable understanding of being one 
organisation with one overall budget.

What is the policy on reserves?

The Council has two forms of reserve – general and earmarked. The earmarked 
reserve is those for specific projects which may have received monies (including 
from elsewhere) but expenditure will run across financial years. The earmarked 
reserve is currently around £5m, of which £3.6m is for services expenditure, and 
£1.4m is for in year contingencies (an example of the requirements being a wall 
collapse in need of urgent repair).

What is the policy on capital assets?

The capital strategy has been redrafted and approved by Executive on 21 February 
2018. The Council has an asset management group which looks at issues 
associated with capital assets.
 
Capital receipts cannot be spent on the revenue budget.

What about checks and balances?

For additional checks and balances the Council had an internal audit process 
including dedicated staff and the Council’s Audit Committee, and is regularly 
externally audited. 

The Head of Finance is the Section 151 officer.

The Council manages its treasury management function through the Finance Team 
with external advice from our Treasury Advisors. 

The Budget Consultation 

The group considered the draft document. Discussions were around:

 possible confusion regarding the parish precept element particularly in the 
graph –this was explained and group members were satisfied with the 
explanation;

Page 11



Overview and Scrutiny 6

 whether the 'have your say' section was in the correct place in the document; 
after discussion it was agreed that the 'how to respond' section would be 
moved to the end of the specific questions;

 whether the question about increasing Council Tax on empty homes ought to 
include the word 'consider' as there was a possibility that without clarity on the 
meaning of the Chancellor's statement, the increase might not be from 50% to 
100% but may be any point between the two;

 similarly whether the question about increasing fees and charges should 
include the word 'consider';

 the date for responses to be submitted being made more evident in the 
document.

The group suggested the Budget Consultation document or a link to the electronic 
version should be directly sent to all Councillors, encouraging them to promote the 
consultation to town and parish councils.

The group was informed the Cumbrian authorities bid to be part of the 100% 
business rates retention pilot was unsuccessful. 

Page 12



Overview and Scrutiny 7

3. Recommendations

The Task and Finish Group recommendations are as follows:

 All Councillors should receive a detailed briefing on the Council’s budget and 
budget setting process as members of the Task and Finish Group had found 
their briefing particularly enlightening.

 The process of budget scrutiny should be continuous.
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee ensure the process now begun should 

continue by either:
o Additionally tasking the Performance Standing Group with scrutiny of 

the budget process
o Setting up a Budget Standing Group with a remit to scrutinise the 

budget process throughout the year.
o Streamlining the process into a single Budget and Performance 

Standing Group. 

For clarity: 
 the Performance Standing Group currently looks at quarterly finance report 

and output data and this will continue;
 the remit of a Budget Standing Group would be to look at the proposed 

budget for the following year. 

While some of the information needed to carry out these respective processes will be 
common to be groups, the focus for each group is different. 

These recommendations will be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 9 March 2018.

Page 13



Overview and Scrutiny 8

4. Conclusion

The Budget Review Task and Finish Group has completed its work. Its task was to 
review the current process. While the Group has found the acquisition of knowledge 
and understanding gained through the process to be particularly useful, it also 
recognised that the group was established too late in the overall process to 
effectively consider the original terms of reference.

The recommendation to establish a standing group to continue the work begun will 
allow a more comprehensive assessment and scrutiny of the budget setting process.

Page 14



Allerdale Borough Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 9 March 2018 

Scrutiny of the Budget Setting Process
Appointment of a Standing Group 

The Reason for the Decision The report seeks agreement from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to establish a Standing 
Group to monitor the Council’s budget setting 
process, appoint a Chair and set the terms of 
reference. 

Summary of options considered Options considered include:

Tasking the Performance Standing Group with 
scrutiny of the budget process

Streamlining the process into a single Budget and 
Performance Standing Group. 

Establishing a Standing Group to carry out 
scrutiny of the budget and the budget setting 
process. This is the recommended option;

Addressing the work in the main Committee. It is 
considered that the topic requires a level of detail 
and time commitment not possible to achieve in a 
Committee Meeting.

Recommendations 1. That a Standing Group is established by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider 
the budget setting process;

2. That the Committee appoint a Chairperson (a 
current Member of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee) who will be responsible for 
managing the Standing Group and reporting 
its findings to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; 

3. That the Committee agrees the initial 
membership of the Standing Group;

4. That the Committee agrees that the Standing 
Group will identify additional Members to be 
co-opted at the scoping stage;

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



5. That the Committee agrees the Standing 
Group’s proposed Terms of Reference at 3.1;

6. That the Standing Group follows the agreed 
Terms of Reference and keeps the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

7. That the Standing Group scopes the work 
applying the scoping exercise template;

8. That the Standing Group reports its findings, 
conclusions and recommendations to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Financial /  Resource Implications The Standing Group will require Member and 
Officer resources. 

Legal / Governance Implications The Standing Group will be required to report its 
work, findings and any recommendations it 
makes to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
for approval. 

Community Safety Implications There are no direct implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

There are no direct implications.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

This will be considered at scoping stage. 

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The Standing Group will contribute to all Council 
Plan priorities and in particular to the Creating A 
Sustainable Business theme. 

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Barbara Cannon 
(Executive Member for Corporate Resources)

Lead Scrutiny Members Councillor Alan Pitcher and 
Councillor Janet Farebrother (Co-Chairs) 

Lead Officer Ian Hinde
Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships)
01900 702544
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 16



Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: None

1.0 Introduction

1.1 As part of its work, an Overview and Scrutiny Committee should review or 
scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the Executive. 

1.2 Members are asked to agree that a Standing Group is established to carry out 
scrutiny of the budget setting process and provide feedback in a report to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee which can then be forwarded to Executive 
with any agreed recommendations. 

2.0 Standing Group Membership 

2.1 The following Committee Members have previously participated in the Budget 
Review group and have indicated their willingness to continue as members of 
a Standing Group: 

 Cllr Joe Cowell 
 Cllr Janet Farebrother
 Cllr Bill Finlay

From the wider membership the following Councillors were previously 
members of the Budget Review group and are volunteering to continue to be 
a member of a Standing Group:

 Cllr Carole Armstrong
 Cllr Peter Bales
 Cllr Marion Fitzgerald
 Cllr Philip Tibble

2.2 The Committee is asked to agree the Standing Group membership from the 
volunteers. 

Page 17



2.3 The Committee is asked to appoint a Chair from the volunteers who are 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members.

2.4 The Committee is asked to delegate to the Standing Group co-option of any 
additional Members at the scoping stage.

3.0 Terms of Reference

3.1 The Committee is responsible for setting Terms of Reference for the Standing 
Group. Terms of Reference are used to guide and focus the Standing Group 
and support the delivery of priorities. The following Terms of Reference are 
proposed:

 to perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the Allerdale 
Borough Council budget 

 to report risks or threats that, in the view of the Standing Group, may 
hinder the Council in achieving its objectives in delivering the Council 
Plan to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration

 to similarly report any suggestions for efficiencies or savings for 
consideration

3.2 Members are asked to consider the proposed Terms of Reference and 
whether any further should be added before agreeing them.

3.3 Members are asked to note that the Task and Finish Group will scope the 
remit based on the terms of reference using scoping template.

3.4 Any changes in Standing Group membership howsoever caused will be 
agreed by the Committee at its first available meeting.

4.0 Recommendations

It is recommended that:

4.1 A Standing Group is established by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
scrutinise the annual budget setting process;

4.2 That the Committee appoint a Chairperson (a current Member of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee) who will be responsible for managing the Standing 
Group and reporting its findings back to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; 

4.3 That the Committee agrees the membership of the Standing Group;

4.4 The Committee agrees that the Standing Group identifies additional Members 
to be co-opted at the scoping stage;

4.5 That the Committee agrees the Standing Group’s Terms of Reference at 3.1; 

Page 18



4.6 That the Standing Group follows the Terms of Reference and keeps the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated; 

4.7 That the Standing Group scopes the piece of work applying the scoping 
exercise template;

4.8 That the Standing Group reports its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

5.0 Conclusion

5.1 Members are advised that a Standing Group is the most appropriate way to 
address this scrutiny work. The Standing Group setting will allow Members to 
manage the level of detail needed to deliver timely feedback, 
recommendations and contribute to the outcomes for the Council and local 
people. 

Ian Hinde
Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships)

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions

1 March 2018 to 28 February 2019

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details

Local Code of 
Corporate Governance

Non-Key Decision

The Code is a public 
statement that sets out 
the way the Council will 
meet its obligations to 
provide an effective 
governance framework 
and represents a key 
component of the 
Council's constitutional 
arrangements.

Audit Committee 

19 February 2018 

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Governance and People 
Resources (Councillor 
Joan Ellis)

Brendan Carlin, Head of 
Governance and 
Monitoring Officer

brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8



Treasury Management 
Strategy, Annual 
Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 2018/19

Key Decision

To present the Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement

Audit Committee 

19 February 2018 

Council

7 March 2018

Open Councillor Barbara 
Cannon

Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager

barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk

Capital Investment 
Strategy 2018/19 to 
2019/20

Non-Key Decision

The capital strategy 
considers all aspects of 
capital expenditure 
within the authority and 
extend to areas where 
an authority is able to 
influence others through 
the use of its capital 
resources. It describes 
how investment of 

Council

7 March 2018

Open

P
age 22



capital resources will 
contribute to 
achievement of 
Council’s key objectives 
and priorities and will be 
a key document 
supporting service plans 
and be the framework 
for the capital 
programme.
Draft Revenue & 
Capital Budget 
Proposals 2018/19

Key Decision

To seek approval for the 
revenue and capital 
budgets and to present 
the formal advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer on 
the robustness of 
estimates included in the 
budget and the 
adequacy of reserves 
which support the 
Council’s budgetary 
plans

Executive 

21 February 2018 

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Barbara 
Cannon)P

age 23



Council Tax 
Resolution Report 
2018/19

Non-Key Decision

To approve the 
necessary resolutions 
for Council Tax setting in 
accordance with 
Sections 31 – 36 of the 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1992.

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Corporate Resources 
(Finance and Property) 
(Councillor Barbara 
Cannon)

Dean Devine, 
Democratic and Support 
Services Officer

dean.devine@allerdale.
gov.uk

Members' Allowances 
2018/19

Non-Key Decision

Councillors to agree a 
new Members' 
Allowances Scheme for 
2018/19 following 
recommendations from 
the Independent Panel 
for Councillors 
Allowances

Council

7 March 2018

Open Councillor Joan Ellis, 
Councillor Barbara 
Cannon

Dean Devine, 
Democratic and Support 
Services Officer

dean.devine@allerdale.
gov.uk

P
age 24



Community 
Governance Reviews

Key Decision

To consider requests 
from Parish Councils to 
commence Community 
Governance Reviews of 
council size and other 
electoral arrangements.

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Governance and People 
Resources (Councillor 
Joan Ellis)

Dean Devine, 
Democratic and Support 
Services Officer

dean.devine@allerdale.
gov.uk

Appointment of 
Deputy Electoral 
Registration Officers

Non-Key Decision

To appoint Deputy 
Electoral Registration 
Officers to undertake 
statutory duties on 
behalf of and in the 
absence of the Electoral 
Registration Officer.

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Governance and People 
Resources (Councillor 
Joan Ellis)

Lindsay Tomlinson, 
Electoral Services 
Manager

lindsay.tomlinson@aller
dale.gov.uk

P
age 25



Waiver of six month 
councillor attendance 
rule (section 85 of the 
Local Government Act 
1972)

Non-Key Decision

For the Council to 
consider whether to 
approve a reason for the 
non-attendance of a 
councillor.

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Governance and People 
Resources (Councillor 
Joan Ellis)

Dean Devine, 
Democratic and Support 
Services Officer

dean.devine@allerdale.
gov.uk

Pay Policy Statement 
18/19

Non-Key Decision

The Councils approach 
to pay in accordance 
with the requirement of 
Section 38 of the 
Localism Act 2011.

Council

7 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Governance and People 
Resources (Councillor 
Joan Ellis)

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor

kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk

Allerdale Social Impact 
Investment Fund

Key Decision

To consider allocating 
part of the annual 
funding of £500,000 
from Sellafield Ltd into a 

Executive

21 March 2018

Open Councillor Alan Smith Nik Hardy, Head of 
Economic Growth

nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk

P
age 26



loans fund. This will 
create a legacy fund 
should Sellafield Board 
decide not to fund in 
future.
Healthy Weight 
Declaration

Non-Key Decision

A declaration 
demonstrating the 
commitment by this 
District Authority along 
with the other Cumbrian 
District Authorities and 
County Council on its 
commitment to reducing 
unhealthy weight within 
our communities,.

Executive

21 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Housing, Health and 
Wellbeing (Councillor 
Carni McCarron-
Holmes)

Helen Sant, Health 
Improvement Manager

helen.sant@allerdale.go
v.uk

Corporate Business 
Plan 2018/19

Key Decision

To approve the 2018/19 
Corporate Business 
Plan. The Business Plan 
sets out specific activity 
that will be undertaken 
over the next year to 
work towards achieving 

Executive

21 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk

P
age 27



the objectives set out in 
the Council Plan and is 
the proposed vehicle by 
which the Council will 
report progress against 
Council Plan 2015-19 
commitments.
Equality objectives

Key Decision

To agree a refreshed set 
of equality objectives for 
the Council in line with 
the Council's obligations 
under the Public Sector 
Equality Duty.

Executive

21 March 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk

Private Sector Housing 
Enforcement Policy

Key Decision

To agree the revised 
Private Sector Housing 
Enforcement Policy and 
to adopt the new Civil 
Penalties Policy.

Executive

18 April 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Housing, Health and 
Wellbeing (Councillor 
Carni McCarron-
Holmes)

Sarah McGowan

sarah.mcgowan@allerd
ale.gov.uk

Revenue & Capital 
Outturns 2017/18

Key Decision

Executive

13 June 2018

Open Councillor Barbara 
Cannon

Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services

catherine.nicholson@all

P
age 28



To inform members of 
the 
• revenue outturn for 
2017/18 and make 
recommendations on 
budget carry forwards 
and transfers to and 
from reserves. 
• capital outturn position 
for 2917/18 and to 
approve the carry-
forward of capital 
resources to 2018/19.

erdale.gov.uk

Q4 Performance report 
2017/18

Non-Key Decision

A report detailing 
performance against the 
Corporate Business 
Plan 2017/18 at the end 
of Quarter 4 2017/18

Executive

13 June 2018

Open Executive Member: 
Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Alan Smith)

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer

alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk

Statement of Accounts 
2017/18

Non-Key Decision

To present members 

Audit Committee

27 July 2018

Open

P
age 29



with the Statement of 
Accounts for 
consideration and 
approval
Treasury Management 
Operation Annual 
Report 2017/18

Key Decision

To inform members of 
the performance of the 
Council’s treasury 
management activities 
for the year

Audit Committee 

20 August 2018 

Council

17 October 2018

Open Councillor Barbara 
Cannon

Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager

barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk

Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.  
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ

Further information is available by calling 01900 702502

Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address.

A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 30

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19 

Last updated: 01/03/18

Standing items for Committee meetings

Items Council Plan 
Theme 

Purpose Lead Officer Lead 
Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead Scrutiny 
Member 

Forward Plan Governance To identify any forthcoming items 
which the Committee may consider 

Head of Governance Leader of the 
Council 

Co-Chairs of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Work Programme 
Updates 

Governance To review the Committee’s own 
workplan for the rest of the year 

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships) Not applicable

Co-Chairs of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Task and Finish 
Group Updates 

Governance To receive progress reports from 
any Task and Finish Group

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships)

Not applicable Chair of each Task and 
Finish Group

Agenda items for Committee meetings

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme 

Further Information Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead Scrutiny 
Member 

9 March 
2018

Budget setting 
process 

Creating a 
sustainable 
business

To consider the Task and 
Finish Group report and 
agree any 
recommendations on the 
budget setting process for 
2018-19

Head of Financial 
Services

Executive Member 
for Corporate 
Resources

Chair of the Task 
and Finish Group

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 10



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19 

Last updated: 01/03/18

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme 

Further Information Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead Scrutiny 
Member 

20 April 
2018 

Update on the 
LGA Review

To review progress towards 
the seven 
recommendations from the 
LGA review.

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships)

Not applicable Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

May/June – 
to be 
confirmed

Effectiveness of 
the Council’s 
consultation 
processes

One day meeting to 
scrutinise the effectiveness 
of the Council's 
consultation processes, 
with a particular focus on 
the most recent local plan 
consultations

Head of Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance with 
input from Head of 
Place Development

Leader of the 
Council

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

1 June 
2018 

Leisure, arts and 
heritage 
provision

Improving 
health and 
wellbeing / 
Enhancing our 
towns

To scrutinise the Council's 
approach to leisure, arts 
and heritage provision

Head of Community 
Services

Executive Members 
for Locality and 
Environmental 
Quality, and 
Tourism & Culture

June/July – 
to be 
confirmed

Delivery of ESF 
funded training 
support across 
the borough

Strengthening 
our economy

One day meeting to 
scrutinise this subject with 
project delivery managers

Head of Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance

Leader of the 
Council

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 32



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19 

Last updated: 01/03/18

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme 

Further Information Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead Scrutiny 
Member 

Update on 
Health Scrutiny

Improving 
health and 
wellbeing

To invite the Council's 
appointed representative 
to Health Scrutiny to give 
an update on its work and 
discuss with the 
Committee any health 
issues for further scrutiny

Head of Housing and 
Health

Executive Member 
for Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

13 July 
2018 

Annual update 
from West 
Cumbria 
Community 
Safety 
Partnership

Improving 
health and 
wellbeing / 
Enhancing our 
towns

To receive an update from 
West Cumbria Community 
Safety Partnership on its 
work.

Head of Governance Executive Member 
for Governance 
and People 
Resources

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Awarding of 
new Community 
Services 
Business Model 
contracts

Creating a 
sustainable 
business /
Enhancing our 
Towns  /
Improving 
Health and 
Wellbeing

Final Report from (and 
conclusion of) Task and 
Finish Group and pre-
Scrutiny of final proposals 
before Executive decision

Head of Community 
Services

Executive Member 
for Locality and 
Environmental 
Quality

Chair of the Task 
and Finish Group24 August 

2018

Setting up task 
and finish group

To establish a task and 
finish group to review the 
success of the current 

Head of Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance

Leader of the 
Council

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 

P
age 33



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19 

Last updated: 01/03/18

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme 

Further Information Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead Scrutiny 
Member 

Council Plan Committee  

Housing 
Enforcement 
Policy

Improving 
health and 
wellbeing / 
Tackling 
inequality

To review the introduction 
of the new policy

Head of Housing and 
Health

Executive Member 
for Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  5 October 

2018
Housing 
Strategy

Improving 
health and 
wellbeing / 
Tackling 
inequality / 
Strengthening 
our economy

To review  further 
objectives within the 
Housing Strategy

Head of Housing and 
Health

Executive Member 
for Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Affinity credit 
union update

 Tackling 
inequality

To update the Committee 
on progress made 
following  the investment

Head of Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance

Leader of the 
Council

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

16 
November 
2018 Councillor 

training and 
engagement

Creating a 
sustainable 
business

Review of training and 
engagement of Councillors

Head of Governance Executive Member 
for Governance 
and People 
Resources

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and 
Scrutiny

P
age 34



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018-19 

Last updated: 01/03/18

Meeting 
Date 

Items Council Plan 
Theme 

Further Information Lead Officer Lead Portfolio 
Holder  

Lead Scrutiny 
Member 

Scrutiny of 
enforcement 
processes 
across the 
Council

Future 
meetings 
2019

Reedlands Road 
project progress 
update

Proposed or Established Standing or Task and Finish Groups 

Topic Format Start date Further Information 
1 Performance Standing Group August 2017 Scrutiny of quarterly reports – management and financial

2 Budget Standing Group April 2018 Scrutiny of budget setting process for 2019-2020

3 Enforcement Policy 
Review 

Task and Finish January 2019 Review of the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy 
and its application across Council services 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 36


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Friday 26 January 2018 of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	6 Report of Budget Task and Finish Group
	7 Appointment of Standing Group
	8 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring

